

1
2
3 **GROUNDRULES AND BY-LAWS FOR THE**
4 **CITY OF CALISTOGA**
5 **CALISTOGA POOL ADVISORY COMMITTEE**
6

7 **PURPOSE**
8

9 The Calistoga Pool Advisory Committee (CPAC) shall act in an advisory capacity to the City Council in
10 matters pertaining to the ongoing operation and maintenance of the Community Pool Facility pertaining
11 to programming, policies with respect to recreation and use by other community groups, determine
12 ways to generate revenue, and to help the City determine future capital expenditures, additional
13 programming and public outreach. No decision of the Committee shall be final and binding on the City
14 unless approved by the City Council or unless authority for the decision has been granted to the
15 Committee by provision of City ordinance.
16

17 The powers and duties of the Calistoga Pool Advisory Committee shall consist of the following as may
18 be modified from time to time by City Council Resolution:
19

- 20 • Develop annual goals to be reviewed and approved by the City Council;
21 • Advise in the planning, and make recommendations concerning aquatics facilities, programs, outreach,
22 policies and other aquatics related programs for the residents of the city;
23 • Upon referral from the City Council, review and make recommendations on capital improvement
24 projects for the Calistoga Community Pool Facility;
25 • Review and make recommendations on community services and the coordination of aquatics services
26 at the Pool Facility and special events with other governmental and private agencies and voluntary
27 organizations;
28 • Upon referral from the City Council, conduct studies and make recommendations which promote and
29 encourage high standards and increased opportunities in aquatics offerings and activities and
30 programs that are in the best interest of the City in accordance with the City's General Plan;
31 • Encourage broad citizen participation in aquatics activities and grant funded program opportunities;;
32 • Act as a sounding board for individuals and organizations having an interest in aquatics programming
33 and feedback for improvement opportunities;
34 • Perform such other duties and functions at the City Council may from time to time direct, or otherwise
35 appoint the commission to administer or coordinate on behalf of the City;
36 • Review and make recommendations to the City Council for community services funding requests as
37 deemed necessary by staff;
38 • Appoint members to serve on special committees to address specific community issues as needed.
39
40
41
42
43
44
45

46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57

GROUND RULES

58
59

A. THESE GROUND RULES ARE INTENDED TO DO THE FOLLOWING:

1. To help the participants understand their roles and responsibilities, and maximize the effectiveness of their participation in the CPAC process.
2. To promote cooperation and collaboration among the representatives on the CPAC, as a way of setting a positive precedent for the community-based planning.

60
61
62
63
64
65

B. COMMUNICATION AND PROBLEM SOLVING

1. Other participants will respect the personal integrity and values of each participant. This includes the avoidance of personal attacks and stereotyping. The motivations and intentions of all participants are to be assumed to be well meaning and positive.
2. Disagreements will be regarded as problems to be solved rather than as battles to be won.
3. Every participant is responsible for communicating his or her position on issues under consideration. It is incumbent upon each participant to state his or her views. Voicing these views is essential to enable meaningful dialogue and full consideration of issues discussed by the CPAC.
4. Each participant agrees to communicate with colleagues in the organizations they represent, to discuss the results of each meeting, to help provide continuity necessary to make collective decisions, and to build a lasting consensus.

66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76

C. INFORMATION SHARING

1. Participants are asked to share pertinent information for items under discussion at all meetings.
2. Participants will help identify information needs that are essential to supporting the CPAC in its deliberations. These requests will be forwarded to staff with the intent of providing the CPAC with responsive technical information with which to refine its recommendations.

77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86

D. DEFINITION OF CONSENSUS

1. The object of the CPAC is to reach a full consensus on issues brought to the attention of the CPAC. The term "consensus" means that all of the participants will work toward reaching agreement as a group on all major elements of their collective decisions. In the unlikely event a participant disagrees on a specific aspect of the decision making process, he or she will be
- 87
88
89
90

91 asked to accede to the wishes of the majority and not oppose the overall findings. Group
92 participants agree to work diligently toward covering the items on each meeting agenda.
93

- 94 2. In cases where a CPAC member is unable to attend, that representative is encouraged to
95 communicate his or her views to another member of the CPAC. By their absence at any
96 meeting, a participant forfeits their ability to revisit the consensual actions at that meeting.
97

98 **E. RATIFICATION AND SINGLE TEXT APPROACH**
99

- 100 1. CPAC participants will use a single text approach for all work products and items to be created
101 and ratified at their meetings, to avoid developing competing versions of any information they
102 develop. This "single text" approach involves each participant indicating their suggested
103 updates to draft work products on the same version.
104

105 **F. RELATIONSHIP WITH THE MEDIA**
106

- 107 1. When discussing the consensus or planning process with the media, participants should take
108 special care to present only their own views and not the opinions of other CPAC members.
109 The natural tendency to discuss other people's viewpoints should be avoided.
110
- 111 2. CPAC participants should adopt a positive tone whenever possible in their deliberations and in
112 contacts with the media. Whenever possible, the media should be encouraged to contact the
113 Secretary, Chair (or Co-Chairs) and Vice Chair to discuss CPAC deliberations.
114
- 115 3. When the CPAC is examining, negotiating, or discussing issues, they will not make public
116 statements prejudging the outcome. These kinds of statements can hamper constructive
117 dialogue among participants and prevent them from reaching a consensus related to the
118 identification and evaluation of available options.
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129

130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162

**CITY OF CALISTOGA
CALISTOGA POOL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
BYLAWS**

163
164

A. Organization and Election and Duties of Officers

1. The Calistoga Pool Advisory Committee shall consist of five members appointed by the City Council, none of whom shall hold any paid office or employment in the city government, and all of who shall reside within the boundaries of the Calistoga Joint Unified School District. The majority of the Committee members shall be residents within the City of Calistoga.
2. Two members will be appointed by the not-for-profit group Calistoga Community Pool Project; and two members the Mayor, with the approval of the City Council. Appointments shall be made at a regular City Council meeting for the two members-at-large for terms of two years; in addition a City staff person will be a member of this Committee.
3. Officers shall consist of Chair (henceforth, Chair or Co-Chairs), Vice Chair and Secretary. Officers shall hold office for one calendar year, or until their successor is elected.
4. The Chairman of the CPAC shall preserve order and decorum and shall decide questions of order.
5. The Chairman of the CPAC may second any motion and present and discuss any matter as a member of the Calistoga Pool Advisory Committee without having to step down from the Chair and shall be entitled to vote on all matters before the CPAC.
6. The Secretary shall be a City Employee, normally the Recreation Manager or his/her designee.
7. The Secretary shall be responsible for the preparation of the CPAC minutes and shall assure that all official actions or decisions by the CPAC shall be recorded within the minutes.
8. The City Attorney of the City of Calistoga shall be the legal counsel to the CPAC.

165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175

B. Meeting Place, Time and Attendance

1. The Calistoga Pool Advisory Committee shall, by record vote, set a time for regular meetings which shall be held at least once every four months.
2. The Chair or the Secretary may call a special meeting as deemed necessary, provided proper notice can be given.

176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220

C. Conflicts of Interest, Compensation and Responsibilities of Committee Members

1. CPAC members shall serve the City of Calistoga as a whole, shall represent no special groups or interest, and shall publicly state when they have financial interest in a matter before the CPAC and therefore disqualify themselves. All CPAC members shall adhere to the City's adopted Ethics policy.
2. Any CPAC member abstaining due to a conflict of interest must announce his or her abstention, indicate the nature of the conflict, and refrain from involvement after the item is introduced. Conflict of interest is defined as a financial interest, close proximity of home or business to the subject property, membership in a class under discussion, or other reasons as defined by Conflict of Interest Laws. Each Committee Member shall consult with the Secretary and/or legal counsel if a conflict is possible but not certain.
3. Members of the CPAC shall serve without compensation, as such, for their services but may receive reimbursement for necessary traveling and other expenses incurred on official duty when such expenditures have received prior authorization by the Recreation Manager or his/her designee.
4. Prior to accepting appointment, potential CPAC members shall commit to attending a minimum of seventy-five percent (75%) of CPAC meetings annually and miss no more than two meetings in a row without an excused absence.
5. If a CPAC member misses more than twenty-five percent (25%) of meetings in a year or has more than two unexcused absences in a row, the Chair and/or Secretary shall discuss with that member his or her desire to continue to serve on the CPAC. If there is no satisfactory resolution, the Secretary shall report the situation to the City Council for resolution.
6. Members who expect to be absent from a scheduled meeting shall notify the Secretary at the earliest opportunity. The Secretary shall notify the Chair in the event the projected absences will provide a lack of quorum.
7. Any meeting of the CPAC may be cancelled in advance by a majority vote of the CPAC. The Chair and/or Secretary may cancel a meeting in the case of an emergency or when a majority of members are unavailable to attend a meeting.

D. Quorum and Voting

1. A majority of the CPAC members entitled to vote shall constitute a quorum. No business may be transacted at a regular or special meeting unless a quorum of the membership is present.
2. Except where otherwise required by law, actions by the CPAC shall be by a majority of the quorum of the CPAC present when action is taken.

- 221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
3. Voting will be by verbal vote. Each member present at the meeting when a question comes up for a vote shall vote for or against the measure unless disqualified from voting and he/she abstains because of such disqualification.
 4. If a member is required to abstain from voting due to prohibitions of State law, such member must also leave the room during any deliberation of the matter. When these circumstances exist, that member will state the reason for abstention and such reason will be noted in the minutes.

231 **E. Conduct of Meetings**

- 232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
1. All meetings, including "informal" or "study" sessions of the CPAC will be open and public and all persons desiring to attend shall be permitted to attend any meeting.
 2. Each speaker appearing before the Commission will be requested to:
 - Be recognized by the Chair
 - State the speaker's name and address if speaking as a resident, or identify the property or organization represented.
 - Make the presentation at the speaker's stand, unless maps or other visual presentation requires standing elsewhere.
 - Address the CPAC through the Chair. There shall be no direct communication with other members, any staff member or any other individual except as recognized and authorized by the Chair.
 3. The CPAC may, either at the beginning of a hearing or pursuant to a motion to limit debate, place time limits on speakers.
 4. Robert's Rules of Order, revised, are adopted for governing the CPAC in all cases to which they may apply, and in which they are not inconsistent with the Civil Code.

253 **F. Policy**

- 254
255
256
257
1. All matters of policy not covered by law shall be adopted by resolution and, when so adopted, shall be considered official policy of the CPAC.

258 **G. Reports to the City Council or Planning Commission**

- 259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
1. The Chair of the CPAC or the designated representative may, by appropriate correspondence or personal appearance, be solely responsible to provide amplifying information to the City Council or Planning Commission.

267
268
269
270
271
272
273

I. **Amending the Bylaws**

1. These Bylaws may be amended at any regular or special meeting of the CPAC, provided that notice of said proposed amendment is given to each voting member at least five days prior to said meeting and be effective the next regular meeting.